
TO\^JN OF SNE,ADS, FI-OR,IDA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019



TOWN OF SNEADS, FLORIDA

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

COUNCIL PRESIDENT

Helen Grice

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT

Tim Arnold

COUNCILMEN

Daryl Johnson
Alton Ranew
Mike Weeks

TOWN MANAGER

Lynda Bell

TOWN CLERK

Sherri B. Griffin

DEPUTY TOWN CLERK

Danielle Guy



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSIÏON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITI ES

BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT
OF NEÏ POSITION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECIU IRED SU PPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - STREET FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - RECREATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF PENSION LIABILIry

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 218.415,
FLORIDA STATUTES, LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POLICIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS REC¡UIRED BY GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORNNG AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANC E WI TH GOVE RNMENT AUD I TI NG STANDARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO MANAGEMENT REQUIRED
BYTHE STATE OF FLORIDA

PAGE

1

4

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

49

50

53RESPONSE TO AUDIT FINDINGS



I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



GruH¿SLEY 6Í AssocrArEs
Professional Association

CertfrcdPubLicAccountants

OWEN W. GRIMSLEY, C.P.A.

MEMBER
FLORIDA INSTITUTE AND
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads, Florida
Sneads, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Town of Sneads, Florida as of and for the year ended September 30,2019, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Town of Sneads
Florida's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

M an age m en t's Respons i b i I i ty fo r th e F i n a n c i al State me nts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Au d ito r's Respons i b i I ity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted out audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Post Office Box 22O' Lafayette Street ' Marianna, Florida 32447-0220. 850-526-3910 ' FAX 850-482-6019



Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads
Page2

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Basis for Quaiified Opinion on Government Widc Finaneial Statements

As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the Town has not measured and
recognized the cost of the future benefits to be provided from its postretirement health
insurance plan. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require that those future liabilities be reported on the Statement of Net Position and in a
Schedule of Finding Progress, and the annual costa associated with the plan be recorded
on the Statement of Activities. The amount by which this departure would affect the long-
term liabilities, net position and expenses of the governmental activities is not readily
determinable.

Qualified Opinion

ln our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the "Basis for Qualified
Opinion on the Government Wide Financial Statements" paragraph, the financial statements
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmentalactivities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sneads, Florida
as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

2
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Other Matters

Req uired S u pplementary I nform atíon

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages

4-9 and 41-43 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial

-at- --- r---^---r--r-^ --.- ^Lr-:-^l 1..-:-- .l:f ^f +L^ l^^^i^ f¡ñ^ñ^¡^l
SIaIemenIS, anq Olnef KflOwlgUge We UU[alllgu Uulll19 Uul clur'llr L,l trrrt L,oÐrtr rrrrdrrvrar

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express on

opinion or provide any assurance

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October g,2O2O, on our consideration of the Town of Sneads, Florida's internal control
over financial reporting on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
reþort is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide on opinion on

internalcontroloverfinancial reporting and compliance and the results of thattesting, and

not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Sneads, Florida's internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an

audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Town of Sneads, Florida's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ç rí,vn ù*'y er A nocíntøY

Marianna, Florida
October 9,2020

Grimsley & Associates, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Town of Sneads discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on signihcant

financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Town's financial activity, (c) identiff changes in the

Town's financial positions (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (d) identiff
any material deviations from the financial plan, (the approved budget) and (e) identifu individual fund

issues or concems.

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's

activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Town's

financial statement.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Town of Sneads exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2019 by $5,897,128 (net

position).

The Town's overall net position decreased from prior reported amounts to current reported amounts by

5738,202. A significant portion of the net increase was unspent casualty insurance proceeds resulting

from Hunicane Michael damage.

City Highlights

In July, 2018 the Town was awarded a grant from the State of Florida, Division Historical Resources in
the amount of $49,588 for restoration of the Town's Log Cabin. Unfortunatel¡ the grant was closed out

in the current year due to a lack of available Historic Preservation Contractors as required by the Division
of Historical Resources.

InAugust, 2018 the Town was awarded a JAG Grant from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement.

This grant was awarded to the Town for the purchase of two vehicles for the Police Department. The

vehicles were ordered in September, 2018 and were delivered in January, 2019. A short term Bridge

Loan was obtained by the Town for the purchase of the vehicles. The final grant and cost of the vehicles

was $78,264. The bridge loan was substantially repaid with the grant funds.

In July, 2019 the Town was awarded a grarúlloan from the Florida Department of Environmental

Protection to assist with water and wastewater damage repairs caused by Hurricane Michael. The award

was broken down as $70,785 for water and 5792,835 for wastewater. Of the total funds ,5174,424 is a
loan and the remainder is a forgiveness loan/grant. As of Jvne 2020, the Town has received $182,903

reimbursement for repairs to the systems.

While we have been striving to be financially sound by implementing common sense spending practices,

following carefully our procurement policy and cutting back on all non-necessary spending, this was a

solid punch in the gut to the Town of Sneads. On October 10, 2018, the Town was hit by Hurricane

Michael (Michael). This storm was classified as a category 5 as it crossed the Florida gulf
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

coast. It was still classified as a category 3 storm as the eye crossed just west of the Town, l[hen we

accessed the damage Michael wrought, we were stunned by the damage at our Ballpark, Sneads, Park on

Lake Seminole and our'Waste Water Treatment Plant. (WWTP)

The Town has received significant insurance proceeds as of September 30, 20t9. Some repair had been

accomplished as of year end, but major repairs and replacements continue.

This Town is resilient and strong. With policies we implemented as stated earlier we are faring well.

V/hen Michael hit, we had no idea the financial cost, we just set our course on the day to day business of
running a town while trying to help our hard-hit residents!

Using this Annual Report

The financial statements focus is on the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the

business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Sneads. This allows the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison and enhance

the Town's accountability.

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial

statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) govemment-wide financial statements,2) fund

financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-\ilide X'inancial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of
activities. Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the

difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, the increases or decreases in net position

may be used as an indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed during

the 2018-2019 fiscal year. The focus is on both the gross and net costs of various activities, both

governmental and business-type that are supported by the government's general tax and other revenues

including grant funds. This statement is intended to summarize andsimpliõ' the user's analysis ofvarious
governmental services. An increase or decrease in net position is a strong indicator of whether the Town's

financial situation is improving or decreasing.

The governmental activities of the Town include general govemment, grarÍ funds, public safety, streets

and health and human services.

The government-wide financial statements can be found in this report.

5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over the resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses

fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories: governmental and proprietary. Traditional

users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more

familiar.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental

activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial

statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town's neat-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial

statements, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town's near-term financing

decisions.

The Town maintains several governmental funds and information pertaining to these funds is presented

in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. The assets of the Street Fund are restricted for street and

road operations and maintenance.

The Town of Sneads adopts an annual operating budget for all funds. The budget for the General Fund

was amended to add 5284,000 primarily for capital expenditures in the Police and Fire Departments, and

debt service in the Police and Street Departments. The Sneads Street Fund and Recreation Department

budgets were increased by $10,000 and $90,000 respectively, substantially for repairs and maintenance.

Proprietary f,'unds

The Town reports the following proprietary funds: W'ater and Sewer Revenue Fund and Solid Waste

Account. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water, wastewater and solid waste. The

proprietary fund statement provides the same type of information as the government-wide financial

statements, only in more detail.

The proprietary fund financial statements may be found in this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in

the government-wide and financial statements. These notes are also included in this report. The Town

has implemented the major model portions of the GASB Statement 34. Historically, a government's

largest group of assets (infrastructure) has not been reported not depreciated in governmental financial

staiements. This new statement requires that these assets be valued and reported within the governmental

column of govemment-wide statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSß

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of SEPTEMBER30'2019

Govemmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Current and other Assets

Capital Assets

Total Assets

Dçferred Ouffl ow of Resources

Cunent Liabilities

Non Current Liabil ities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inf'low of Resources

$

2018

265,871

t.247.477

2019

s 1,241,640

t.067.562

2.309.202

211,0t0

2018

860,100 $

6.352.600

2019

t,092,672 $

6.123.093

2018

1,t25,971

7,600,077

2019

2,334,312

7,t90,655

$ $

1.5 13.348 7.2t2.700 7.215.765

100.261

8.726.048

387,260

9-524.967

270.636 fi6,624 3il,27t

84,81 I

114.7r7

r 06,768

684.383

256,856

2.722.440

266,794

2.680.585

341,667

3,437,t57

373,562

3,364,968

799.528 79t.lst 2.979.296 2.94',7.379 3;178-824

175,558

3.738.530

122,687 135,730 52,871 64,850 200,580

Net Position

lnvested in Capital Assets, net of
related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

1,t98,112

t6,37s

(352,718)

1,156,629

436.702

3,91 8,158

t87,493

I 9 1,506

3,763,535

194,903

345,359

5,tt6,270

203,868

06r.212\

4,920,164

t94,903

782,061

$-*-___sélJég $-------1193.331 L---A.D1-157 S*----4,303J97 $------5Jl8l2é $---1"E97J28
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Activities

The following schedule compares revenues and expenses for the current year.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30' 2019

Governmental

Activities

Business-T¡pe

Activities

2018 2tl9

$ 1,321,457 $ 1,389,448 $

Total

2018 2019 2018

1,56ó,168
t< <<ô

3 1,563

2019

$ t,586,',|93
a1 a7a

129.250

769,t07

2t,0'14

490,257

351,27'7

14,140

1.645.855

REVI,NT]ES

Program Revenues

Charges for Services

Opemting Grants & Contributions

Capital Grants & Contnbutions

Total Program Revenues

$ 244,7fi $

35,559
2l {Á?

t9'1,345

37,533

129.250

3 I 1.833 3@.t28 t.321.457 1.389.448 r.633.290 r.753,5"t6

General Revenues

Taxes - Other

Propøty Taxes

Gain on Disposition of Capital Asse

Insurance Proceeds - Hurricane Mic

Transfers

Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Governmental Activities

General Govemment

Public Safety

Physical Environment

Transportation

Health and Sanitation

Culture/Recreation

Interest on Long Term Debt

Business Type Activities

Water and Sewer

Solid Wæte

709-234

1.021.067

655,991

20,644

769,107

2t,074

457,504

138,013

4,2t0
9.525

655,991

20,644

20,000

12,599

(20,000)

3,907

32,753

2t3,2@
(4,2r0)

4.6t5 16,506

1.399.433 116.093) 246.422 693.141

t,763,561 1.305.364 1,635,870 2,326,431 3,399,43r

133,091

560,504

10,949

282,181

6,577

150,870

3,269

128,523

530,966

7,49t
269,980

'7,477

83,085

4,477

133,091

560,504

10,949

282,t81

6,5'17

150,870

3,269

1,t46,334

216.096

128,523

530,96ó

7,491

269,980

7,4',17

83,085

4,47"1

t,146,334

216^096

1,378,088

251,142

1,378,088

25t,142

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position-Beginning

Net Position-Ending

t,t4'1,441 1,031,999 1"362.430 1,629,230 2-509-871 2,661,n9

(126,3't4)

988,143

73t,562

861,769

(s1,066)

4.354.223

6,&0

4,297,157

(183,440)

s.342-366

738,202

s,t58,926

s 4.29',1,1s',7

I

$ 86r,769 $_____1121i11 $ 4.303.797 $ 926 S 5,897,t28



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Govemmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows

and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financial
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's

net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of September 30,2019 the City's governmental funds reported combined ending funds balances of
$1,045,805. Of this amount $1,045,805 was unrestricted.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide

financial statements, but in more detail.

Total net position of the proprietary funds as of September 30, 2019 were 54,303,797 of which

$4,108,894 was unrestricted including invested in capital assets.

Request for Information

The City's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, and

creditors) with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability.

If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, you may contact

the city clerk, sheni Griffrn at sneads city Hall, telephone 850-593-6636.

I
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2019

Primarv Government
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Assets
Accounts Receivable
lnventory
Due from other Governments
lnternal Balances
CapitalAssets:

Land
Other GapitalAssets, Net of Depreciation

Total CapitalAssets
TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Odflows Related To Pension

L¡ABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Customer Deposits
Long Term Liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred lnflows Related To Pension

NET POSITION
lnvested in CapitalAssets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for:
Special Projects
Debt Service
Other Purposes

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Position

1,172,058 6,123,093 7 ,295,151
2,309 202 7, 215,765 9,524,967

211,010 100,261 311,271

$ 913,950 $
43,1 83
26,843

86,970
66,198

684,605
313,323
125,194
35,748

(66,198)

20,427
6,102,666

Total

$1,598,555
356,506
152,037
35,748
86,970

124,923
7,170,228

104,496
1,067,562

91,339

15,429

63,462
620,921

791,151

113,339
90,751

62,704
2,314,607

365,978

204,678
90,751

78,133

2,378,069
986,899

2,947,379 3,738,530

135,730 64,850

1 ,156,629 3,763,535 4,920,164

200,580

42,659
152,244
345,359

42,659
152,244
782,061436,702

$1 ,593,331 $ 4,303,797 $5,

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

10
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Proqram Revenues
Fees, Fines Operating Capital

and Charges Grants and Grants and

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Positior
Primarv Government

Expenses forServices Contributions

$
29,080 129,250

8,453

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$ (5,314)
(337,271)

2,261
(254,872)

(6,277)
(61,921)
Ø.477\

$ (229,217)
(10,565)

39 782

(667,871) (23e,782)

Total

$ (5,314)
(337,271)

2,261
(254,872)

(6,277)
(61 ,921)

4 77
(667,871)

(229,217)
(10.565)

(239,782)

(e07,653)

Contributions

Functions/Proqrams
Governmental Activities :

General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Health
Culture/Recreation
lnterest on Long Term Debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities :

Water & Sewer
Solid Waste

Total business type activities

Total primary government

$ 128,523
530,966

7,491
269,980

7,477
83,085

4,477
1,031,999

1,378,088
251,142

s 123,209 $
35,36s
9,752

15,108
1,200

12,711

1,148,871
240,577

197,345 37 533 129,250 (667,871)

1.629.230 1,389,448

$ 2,661,229 $1,586,793 $ 37,533 $ 129,250

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes, levied forgeneral purposes
Taxes - Other

Miscellaneous
Gain From Disp-osition of CapitalAssets
lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane Michael
Transfers ln (Out)

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

4,615
32,753

213,264
ø.210\

246,422 1,645 855

6,640 738,202

4,297,'157 5.158.926

21,O74
769,107

9,525
457,504
1 38,013

4 210
1.399,433

731 562

861,769

21,074
769,107

14,140
490,257
351,277

Net Position - beginning

Net Position - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

September 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash
Accounts Receivable
Due from other Governments
Due from other Funds

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities.

Accounts Payable
Due to other Funds

Total Liabilities

$ 898,451 $
26,843
86,970

19,O42 $ 15,499

24,141
6,240

$ 12,ooo $ 7,609 $ 71,730
- 43,236

Total
Recreation Governmental

Fund Funds

$ 932,992
26,843

111,111
109,434

General
Fund

Street
Fund

103 194

$ 1,115,458 $ 49,423 $ 15,499 $ 1, 180,380

$ 91,339
43,236

12,000 50,845 71 730 134 575

Fund Balances:
Assigned For:

Recreation
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and

Fund Balances

1 ,103,458
1,103,458

(1,422)
(56,231) (56,231)

- 1 ,102,036
1.422) (56,231) 1, 045,805(

$ 1,115,458 $ 49,423 $ 15,499 $ 1,180,380

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

12



Town of Sneads, Florida
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities
in the statement of Net Position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds.

Some liabilities, including loan payables are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows are not reportable as current expenditures and therefore
not reported in the funds.

Deferred inflows are not reportable as current revenues or reductions of
expenditures and therefore not reported in the funds.

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

$ 1,045,805

1,172,O58

(699,812)

211,O10

(135,730)

$ 1,593,331

13



Town of Sneads, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

General

Fund

Street

Fund

Recreation

Fund

10,948

40

Total

Governmental

Funds

$ 558,587

1 01,1 85

398,377

75,858

3,252
26,993

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses & Permits

I ntergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgments and Fines

Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
l^r r¡¡anf '

General Government

Public Safety

Physical Environment

Transportation

Health

Culture/Recreation

Debt Service:

Principal

lnterest
CapitalOutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

oTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

FUNDS

Proceeds from Disposition of

CapitalAssets

lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane Michael

Transfers ln
Transfers Out

Net Change in

Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES - beginning

FUND BALANCES - ending

1,033,339 119 925 10,988 1,164,252

$ 438,694 $
101,185

398,377

64,910

3,252
26,921

1 19,893 $

32

114,836

430,651

6,751

106,319

7,103

2,055

24,459

4,069
160,766

127,837

65,466

114,836

430,651

6,751

234,156

7,103

67,521

33,936

4,477
272,195

9,477

408

857,009 137 722

111,429

176,895 1,171,626

176,330 (17,797) (165,907) (7,374\

695,960

138,013

4,210
(e6,1e4)

918,319

1 85,1 39

$ 1,103,458

96,1 94

(69,713) 830,809

695,960

138,013

100,404
(96,1 94)

214,996

$ 1,045,905

(17,797)

16,375 13,482

9____(_,422) $____j!9¿91)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 830,809

Amounts reported for governmental activities
in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The amount

by which depreciation, $(107,936), exceeds net capital outlays, $32,517,
in the current period. (75,41e)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,

but issuing debt increases long term liabilities in the Statement of Net

Position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental

funds, but repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net

Position. This is the amount by which repayments, reductions and decrease
in accrued leave and net pension liability, $41,97S,exceeded increases in

debt, $0, in the current period. 41,975

Deferred outflows and inflows do not use or provide current financial

resources to governmental funds. These amounts, however, reflect longer

term uses and sources of resources and are reflected in the Statement of
Net Position. This is sum of the decrease in deferred outflows, $(59,626),
the increase in deferred inflows, $(13,043) and the decrease in net
pension liabilities, $6,866, in the current period. (65'803)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 731,562

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Statement of Net Position - Proprieta

September 30, 2019
ry Funds

Business Activities

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Due From Other Funds
lnventory

Total Cunent Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
CapitalAssets:

I ^-iLailu

Buildings and I mprovements
lmprovements Other than Buildings

Machinery and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related To Pension

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Loans from Other Funds
Current Portion of Bonds & Notes

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities :

Accrued Leave
Customer Deposits
Bonds and Notes Payable after One Year
Net Pension Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred lnflows Related To Pension

NET POSITION
lnvested in CapitalAssets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted:
Debt Service
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 620,692 $ 63,913
125,194

- 7,404

Water &
Sewer

Solid
Waste

Total
Proprietary

Funds

$ 684,605
125,194

7,404
35,74835,748

781,634 71,317 852 951

313,323 313,323

o^ tttTlVra4t

67,662
11,643,593

694,735
(6,352,589)
6,387,151

tñ 
^)7

67,662
11,643,593

872,637
(6,481,226)

177,902
128 63
49,265 6,436,416

7,168,785 120,582 7,289,367

88,952 11,309 100,261

96,528
71,905
62,704

231,137

16,811
1,697

1 13,339
73,602
62,704

18,508

17,753
90,75'l

2,296,854
284,020 B1 958

249 645

17,753
90,751

2,296,854
365,978

2,689,378 81 958 2,771,336
2, 920,515 100,466 3,020,981

57 654 7j96 64,850

49,265 3,763,5353,714,270

42,659
152,244
370,395

42,659
152,244

(25.036) 345 359

9,568 $$4,27
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position -

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business Activities

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous Charges and Fees

Total Charges for Services

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Services

Contractual Services

Utilities

Repairs and Maintenance

Other Supplies and expenses

lnsurance

Depreciation

Total Operating Expend itures

Operating lncome (Loss)

NONOPERAT ING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

lnterest lncome

lnterest Expense

Gain on Disposition of CapitalAssets

lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane Michael

Transfers Out

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION, beginning of year

240,577 1,389,448

24,549

202,720_

6,67;
17,202

1,277,413 251,142 1,528,555

(128,542) (10,565) (139, 1 07)

Water &

Sewer

$ 1 ,1 19,687
29,194

1,148,871

411,110

52,468

1öU,þ41

238,047

108,034

33,355

253,857

Solid

Waste

$ 238,519
2,058

Total

Proprietary

Funds

$ 1,358,206
31,242

435,659

255,188

lÕu,c¿+z

238,047

108,034

40,026

271,059

4,495
(100,675)

28,543

213,264

130

4,210

4,615
(100,675)

32,753

213,264
(4,210)

130

4,2 10)

145,617 145,747

17,075 10.435) 6,640

4,262,493 34,664 4 97 157

$ 4,279,568 $ 24,229NET POSITION, end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows -

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business T Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Water & Solid
Sewer Waste

$ 1,143,160 $ 240,577
(562,946) (209,136)
(3e3,046)

187 168

(21 ,061)
10,380

Total
Proprietary

Funds

$ 1,383,737
(772,082)
(414,107)

197,548

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Loans from (to) Other Funds 28,552

Other Receipts 4,424

(1,204)

Transfers to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

(4,210)
2,) q.7A

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of CapitalAssets (49,945)

Disposition of CapitalAssets 36,936

PrincipalPaid on Capital Debt (74,884)

lnterest Paid on Capital Debt (100,861)

lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane Michael 213,264

4,210

Net Cash Provided by Capitaland
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVEST¡NG ACTIVITIES

lnterest lncome

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year

24,510 4,210

4,485

17,202
4,230

255
(742)

27,348
+,424
(4,210)
?7 5F.?

(4e,e45)
41,146

(74,884)
(100,861)
213,264

28,720

130 4,615

249,139

684,876

$ 934,015 $ 63,913 $ 997,928

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH

USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating lncome (Loss) $ (128,542) $ (10,565) $ (139,107)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:
Depreciation 253,857

Pension Expense 33,944
Change in Assets and Liabilities, and Defened Outflows

Accounts Receivable (5,711)

lnventory 4,236

Accounts Payable 35,378

Deferred Outflows - Contributions after Measurement De (5'994)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 187,168 $ 10,380 $ 197,548

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B GOVERN ENT.WIDE AND FU ND F¡NANCIAL STA

A. REPORTING

lntroduction-

The accounting and reporting framework and the more. significant a.ccounting. policies and
oriñcioies and iractices'of thé Town of Sneads, Florida (Town) are discussed in the various
5äCtidnð-oi tñ¡5 ñoie- The remainder of the notes are'orgariized to prov-ìde explanations,
lnctüãing requ¡reO 

-disclosures, 
of the Town's financial actlvities for the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2019.

Reporting entity-

The Town was oriqinallv incorporated in 1894. The Town was dissolved and re-established on
nnaÍ i S, i gài nV ÃCt otifre Leþislature of the State of .Florid.a,.Lqy. of Florida,. N.o.. 15483. The
iõún Oôes not have any compbnent units that are includable in these financial statements.

l¡-Mt--N t¡'

Government-wide Financial Statements

The oovernment-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the
éiateñéht oi aCtìv¡tlei. irrese statements report financial information for the Town as a whole.
inOiùiOuàl funds ârã not displayed but thej statements distinguish .governmental activities,
qenerallv supported by taxejs ánd Town general revenues, -from business-type activities,

[enerally fináriced in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset þV R¡ogram revenues
áiiðctV õonnéciéo w¡tr tne fünctional prògram.. A fulction is an assembly of sí'milar activities
and mäy include portions of a fund or bummarize more than one fund to canture lle expenses
ãnO proóràm reveinues associated with a distinct functional.activity. Program. revenues include:
(1) charóes for seÑióéJwÑðfr report fees, fines and forfeitures,.ând other charges to users of
ìná fowïJ sêÑ¡ces; (2) operating granté and contributions which finance a1LuaJ. operating
äàtiuit¡"Jiñduoing-restiiáeo invesiínént incom.e; and (3) capit?lgrants.and contributionswhich
fr;d iñé aðquiJ¡ioñ, construction, or rehabilitation'of capital-assets and include fees to
Oêvèlópers. These revenues are subject to externally imposed,restrictions to these program
uses. 'Taxes and other revenue souices not properly included with program revenues are
reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fu nd financial statements are
qovernmental and enterPrise
lor non-major funds

provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Majgr individual
iunds are reþorted in separate'columns with composite columns

c
P

REME BASIS NTIN IAL

The financial statements of the Town are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and
the a"ccrual basis of accounting genèrally including the reclassification or elimination of internal
activity (between or within funðs). Howéver, interñal eliminations do not include utility services
provid-ed to Town departments. Reimbursements are reported- as reductions to expenses.
Þroprietary fund finanöial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting
alth'ough ihternal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned"and expenses aie recorded when a liability is.incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognizêd in the year for which they are levied while
grants are recoghized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of adcounting. Revenues are recognized
when they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current
period or'soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The Town considers revenues to be
ävailable if they are-collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, franchise tax.eg (fees) and
intérgovernmental revenues. 

'ln 
general, other revenuès are recognized when cash is received.

NOTE 1 - SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTI POLICIES - Continued

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and
eipenseõ related to tlre primary, continuing operatio-ns of the fund. Principal operating revenues
foi proprietary funds aie chárges to cuétomers for sales or services- Principal operating
expèns'es are-the costs of provitiing goods or services and include administrative expenses and
deþreciation of capital assäts. Othéirevenues and expenses are classified as non-òperating in
the financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. Restricted assets and
liabilities payable from restricted assets are reported with non-current assets and current
liabilities in the financial statements.

D AND MAJOR

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - the general operating fund of the Town. lt is used to account for all financial
resources except thole requiri:d to bè accounted for in another fund.

Street Fund - accounts for the revenues from state and local gasoline taxes and the associated
expenditures of these restricted funds.

Recreation Fund - accounts for the revenues from the operation of the Sneads Recreation Park
and the expenditures related to such operations.

The Town reports the following proprietary funds:

Water and Sewer Fund - accounts for the operations of the water and sewer systems that are
financed primarily by user charges.

Solid Waste Fund - accounts for the operations of the solid waste collection system that is
financed primarily by user charges.
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

NIFICANT POLtCt - Continued

E. INVENTORIES

Supply inventories on hand ,are kep-t at minimum amounts. lnventory is recorded at the lower of
ðóéÏ ór market using the first-in'first-out method. lnventory costs are recorded using the
purchases method.

F. CAPITAL ETS AND DE IATION

The Town's property, plant, and equipment and infrastructure with a cost exceeding $1,00.0 and
useful l¡ves'of inore'than one yeär'are stated at cost and reported in the government-wide
finanòial statements. Proprietaiy fund capital assets are also'reported in thê funds financial
ðtaieménts. Donated asseits are'stated at tair value on the date they were donated. Purchased
ássetJ aré reported at cost. Capital .qgsels acquired .throu.qh capital lease obligations are
iecoøeO at tlie present value of the obligation at'inception. Normal..repairs and maintenance
tñatdo not add tó tfre value of the asset aré charged to éxpense. Capital assets are depreciated
üslño 1né strá¡qht-line method of depreciation.- When 

'capital 
assets are sold or othenryise

OeJõseC oi, tl'rð cost and accumulateä depreciation are applied against an), p!'oceeds.from the
Oiãpóðit¡ón anO Ûre resultant gain or loss is recorded in op'erationé. Estimâted useful lives for
depreciable assets are as follows:

Vehicles and Equipment 5-40 Years

Water and Sewer System 40 Years

lnfrastructure and Other
lmprovements other than Buildings 40 years

Buildings 40 Years

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the Town began recording the acquisition of
intraéiructure, streets, roads, sidewalks, etc., as cap,ital asseté effective {ol.ac.qujsitions made
ãfter Septemóer 30, 2003. Piior infrastructure acquisitions have not been included.

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future
periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense or expenditure) until

inen. The deferred outflows of resources reported in the Town's Statement of Net Position

represent pension related balances for changes in actuarial assumptions, changes in the

proportion and differences between the Town's contributions and proportionate share of

contributions, and the Town's contributions subsequent to the measure date, relating to the

Florida Retirement System (FRS) Pension Plans. These amounts will be recognized as

increases in pension expense in future years.

Deferred lnflows of Resources
Deferred infiows of resources represents acquisition of resources that applies to future reporting

periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resource (revenue) until then. The Town

reports deferred inflows in the Statement of Net Position for pension related balances for the

difference between expected and actual economic experience, the net difference between
projected and actual earnings of FRS Pension investments, and changes in the proportion and

differences between the Town's contribution and proportional share of contributions relating to

the FRS Pension Plans. These amounts will be recognized as reductions in pension expense

in future years.
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIF¡CANT NT¡NG POLICIES - Continued

Pensions
In the government-wide and proprietary funds statement of net position, liabilities are recognized
for the Town's proportionate share of the pension plan's net pension liability. For purposes of
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension expense,
information about the net position of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit plan

and additions to/deductions from FRS's net position has been determined on the same basis as

they are reported by the FRS plans. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of
paid dates and benefit payments and refunds of employee contributions are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at fair value.

G. FUND E UI

The followinq fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending
constraints pl-aced on the purpose for which resources can be used:

-Nonspendable fund balance - Amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventories,

delegates the authority;
-Una"ssiqned fund balánces - Amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are
reported in the general fund.

Expenditures are considered to be applied to fund balances from most restrictive to least
restrictive as appropriate.

At September 30, 2019 the Town had no non-spendable or committed funds.

H. PROPERTY TAXES

The Town voted a local millage rate for the assessment of ad vqlgle_m pr.operty taxe9. T.his rate
was set at .6064 mills for theÕctober 2018 through September 2019 budget ye?¡. The Jackson
County Property Appraiser's office includes thi-s assessment with county. wide property tax
asseséments. The Jäckson County Tax Collector is charged with collecting these revenues and
distributing to the Town its share of these collections.

All taxes are generally due and payable on November 1 of each..year. . 
Discounts are allowed of

four, three, türo and bne percent 
-for 

payments in November through_February, respectively.
Delii"rquent'taxes at April 1', are converted, by the County, into Tax Certificates. Therefore, there
are nd significant taxes receivable at year end.
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

I. BUDGET PROCESS

Florida Statutes govern the preparation, adoption, and administration of the- budget for the. Town
of Sneads. TheÏown prepáres a budget for-all funds. The annual budget for thè General Fund
and Street Fund was þreþared consisfent with generally accepted accounting principles. Legal
level of control is established at the department total level.

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT CCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

J RISK MANAGEMEN T AND INSURANCE

NOTE 2 _ CASH AND DEPOS ITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Amount insured by FDIC

Amount subject to Custodial Risk (Risk of loss due to bank failure)
Collateralized with securities pledged by the financial institution and

held in trust, but not in the Town's name)

Total Deposits With Financial lnstitutions

Petty Cash (unsecured)

Total

Carrying value on financial statements

The Town, in accordance with state and local regulat¡ons, deposits its cash funds in approved
financial institutions. The financial institution is required to pledge U. S. Government Securities
as co¡lateral for such funds. All deposits are in checking accounts, bank money market accounts,
or certificates of deposit. At Septilmber 30, 2019, theTown had the following cash deposits:

The Town insures itself against losses from casualty, accident and dishonesty by purchasing
insurance. Premiums aré based on estimates and additional charges or credits may be
forthcoming based on actual experience.

The Town believes the level of insurance purchased is adequate to protect it from material loss.
No significant changes in coverage have been made in the last three years. There were
signifióant claims in fhe current year. See Note 13 below.

K. ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally a_ccepted_ accounting
princiþleb requires management to make estimates and âssumptions that affect certain reported
ãmounts and'disclosuresl Accordingly, actual results could difier from those estimates.

$ 250,000

1,763,274

2,O13,274

400

$ 2,013,674

$ 1,e30,920

A significant portion of cash deposits at year end is unspent insurance proceeds
recelved as á result of Hurricane Michael damage.

No additional items are included as cash or cash equivalents.

The Town has made no other deposits or investments and has no near term plans to do
so. The Town has no formal, written cash risk policy.

23



Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

NOTE 3 _ RECEIVABLES

At September 30, 2019, the Town reported significant receivables as follows:

GENERAL FUND

Utility Tax and Franchise Fees
Due From State of Florida
Due From Jackson CountY

Total

$

STREET FUND
Due From State of Florida
Due From Jackson CountY

TOTAL

WATER AND EWER FUND
Utility Serviees Receivable

Other
TOTAL

Street Fund

Water & Sewer Fund

Water & Sewer Fund

Solid Waste Fund

Water & Sewer Fund

Water & Sewer Fund

Total

GeneralFund
Solid Waste Fund

Total

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Street Fund

Solid Waste Fund

Recreation Fund

General Fund

Operating Expense $

Operating Expense

Revenue Collection

Operating Expense

Operating Expense

Revenue Collection

Operating Expense
Operating Expense

26,843
86,370

600

$ 1 13,813

$ 2O,4O5

3 736
$24 141

124,986
208

$ 125,194

These interfund loan

Amount

43,236

37,471

20,790

1,697

6,240
7,404

$ 1 16,838

Amount

$ 96,194
4,210

q__i9191

$

No allowances for uncollect¡ble accounts are considered necessary

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND BALANCES A D ACTIVITY

As of September 30, 2019, the following interfund loa.ns were recorded
amounts are expected to be repaid as funds are available.

Due From Due To Purpose

The following interfund transfers were made during the current year:

Transfer From Transfer To Purpose
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2019

5_CAP

CapitalAssets Activity for the year ended September 30, 2019 was as follows

Beqinning lncreases Decreases

Balance

Governmental Activities

Capital assefs not bei ng depreci ated

Land

Total

Capital assefs bei ng depreci ated

Roads, sidewalks, etc.

Buildings & improvements

I mprovements other than build ings

Equipment

Total

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Roads

Buildings & improvements

I mprovements other than buildings

Equipment

Total

Net Capital assets being depreciated

Net Governmental Activity Capital Assets

$ 104,496 $ $

104,496

Endinq

Balance

$ 104,496

104,496

149,654
372,652

1,044,922 107,305

164,086

(55,539)

(416,100)

149,654

317,113
736,127

.t4
I'Z 32,639 1ãat

I \ri7 1ÀaITU 1n
ltL

Ê,7 E7'7

2,799,867 271,391 (610,787) 2,460,471

80,573

182,304
437,177

956,832

5,986

7,409
25,138
69,403

(22,247)
(246,886)

(102,780)

(371,913)

86,559

167,466

215,429
923,455

1,656,886 107,936 1,392,909

1,142,981

$ 1,247 ,477

163,455 (238,874) 1,067 ,562

$ 163,455 $ (238,874l $ 1 ,172,058
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2019

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS _ Continued

Beqinninq lncreases
Balance

Business Type Activities
Capital assefs not be i ng depreci ated
Land $ 20,427 $

Total 20,427

Capital assefs being depreci ated
Buildings & improvements 80,389
lmprovements other than buildings 1 1 ,643,593
Equipment 870,982

Total 12,594,964

Decreases Endinq
Balance

$ 20,427$

20,427

49,945 (48,290)

49,945 (61,017)

(12,727) 67,662
11,643,593

872,637

12,583,892

Less Accumulated Dep reciatio n

Buildings & improvements 38,612
lmnrnvements ofher fhan huildinos 5 514 110

General government

Public Safety
Police
Fire
Fire Rescue

Physical Environment
Transportation
Health
Recreation

Total

1,692
?33 7?9

35,638

(4,334) 35,970
5,747,839

697,417Equipment 710,069 48

Total 6,262,791 271,059 (52,624) 6,481,226

Net Capital assets being depreciated 6,332,173 (221,114) (8,393) 6,102,666

Net Business Type Activity Capital Assets $ 6,352,600 $ (221,114) $ (8,393) $ 6,123,093

GovernmentalActivity depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows

$ 7,151

25,720
26,159

1,275
740

31,664
374

14,853

$ 107,936
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NOTE 6 _ LON G TERM DEBT

Govern mental Activities

Note payable
Monthly installments of $81 1 through January 2016 including interest at

5.Qo/o. Balloon January 15, 2016 of $35,962. Refinanced through January

2020 with monthly installments of $824. Collateralized by equipment

Note payable

One half share of note with Water & Sewer Fund. Total monthly

installments of $1 ,930 through March 2020 including interest al4.5o/o

Collateralized by equipment

Note pavable

Monthly installments of $1,167 through March 2020 including interest at

5.0%. Collateralized by equipment

Accumulated compensated absences

Total Governmental Activities

$ 3,177

5,715

6,537

72,692

$ 88,121

Changes in governmental activities are as follows for the year ended September 30, 2019

Beginning

Balance

lncreases Decreases

$ 130,000 $

1,191

Ending

Balance

(163,936) $ 15,429 $

72,692

Due in One

Year

15,429
4,615

Notes payable

Accrued Leave

Total

$ 49,365
71,501

$ t 20,866 $ 131 ,191 $ (163,936) $ 88,121 $ 20,044

The Town borrowed, and repa¡d two short term notes in the current year in the amounts of
$80,000 and $50,00Ó for advänce funding of police and fire equipment. The loans were repaid
with state grant funds.

The current portion of Accrued Leave is included in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses.

Future debt service on governmental activities, excluding compensated absences is as follows

Due Date Principal Total

15,429 $2020 $

27
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NOTE 6 _ LONG DEBT - Continued

Total interest charged to expense for governmental activities for the year ended September 30,

2019 was $1,536.

Business Type Activities

PRISE

As of September 30, 201g the Town has several bonds and notes outstanding related to the
Water & Sewer System.

Note Pavable Bank -One half of note shared with the General fund. Dated March 17, 2015,

ffibIeinmonthlypaymentsof$1,930.Collateralizedbyequipment.

Principal Balance due as of September 30, 2019 $1215

Note Florida oartment of Environmental n Dated August 21, 2013,

$41,012 issued, interest at 1.460/o, payable in 40 semi-annual installments on June 15 and

December 15 through June, 2033. The purpose of th
ramp and landing at the Sneads Park. The agreement
fund sufficient to pay the next semi-annual payment'

is loan was for improvements to the boat
requires monthly installments to a sinking

Principal Balance due as of September 30, 2019 $30.004

Note payable Local lndividual - Dated April 27, 2018, $20,000 issued. No stated interest,

payable in 20 monthly payments of $1,000. The purpose of this loan was to purchase a small

þlot of land for s storm water holding pond. Due to the relatively small balance of this loan, no

interest is being imPuted.

Principal Balance due as of September 30, 2019 L3J00

Bonded Debt carries various requirements for the handling proceeds from the operation of the

water and sewer system. A summary of these requirements follows.

The Bond Ordinance adopted March 12,2002, requires the establishment of certain "trust funds"
to inãùre repaymeñtôiiñJwaterand'Sewei System Revenue Bonds. A summary of these
requirements is as follows:

A. All cash income derived from the ownership and operation of the system shall be

deposited into the "Revenue Fund."

B. The "sinkinq Fund" is to be used exclusively for the purpose of paying principal and
interest on l"ne oöños-and is to be funded byiransferring ón or before the 15th of each
monn from ihã 'iRevenue Fund," 1t12 ót tfre next-annual interest and principal
requirements.

C. The "2003 Reserve Account" is to be established by transferring on or before the 1Sth of
eäðfr m-onth fiõm the "Revenue Fund," the sum of oríe twelfth of one tenth of the Maximum
eãnO Sérvicäiéqliireméntuntilthe a'ccount reaches, and to maintain, the maximum debt
ã"ri.þ ruôui"rãnt. The lunds in this account shaÍl be used onlyJr.f_ryfry^the.cost of
repar¡ng o|leplaóìtìg any dámage to the system caused by an unforeseen catastrophe,
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construction improvements or extensions to increase net revenues, and paying principal
and interest in the event that the Sinking Fund is insufficient to meet such payments.

D. The "Operation and Maintenance Fund" is to be used exclusively for the purpose of
receivinþ funds transferred monthly from the Revenue Fund and. for paying.the current
expense- of the system pursuant tô the annual. budget. 

-. 
Any balance rema.ining in the

"Oþeration and Maintenãnce Fund" at the end of tlre.fiscal year over and above the
aniount required to pay expenses incurred during said fiscal year shall be deposited into
the revenue fund.

The Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds - Series 2010 carry debt service and other
administrative requiremeñts consistent with the previously issued Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds - Series 2003

NG-TERM - Continued

WATER AND SEWER R UE BONDS Series - 1976 - During the year ended September
30,2019 the Town made the final payments on the Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds
Series 1976. Final principal paid was $55,000 and interest paid was $2,750.

WATERANDSEWERSYSTE@-Series2003-DatedApril3,2003,
ayable annuallY on SePtember 1.

Due Date
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2042

TOTALS

Principal lnterest

$ 36,000 $
38,000
40,000
41,000
43,000

247,000
307,000
384,000
276,A00

63,540
61,920
60,210
58,410
56,565

251,955
191,160
1 15,515
25,335

$ 1,412,000 $ 884,610
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

RANDS REVEN
aut rest

- Series 2010 - Dated November 22,2010,
, payable annually on September 1.

lnterestDue Date
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
zu+c-¿vt+v

2050
Totals

Principal

$ 16,000 $
17,000
17,000
18,000
18,000

103,000
125,000
150,000
190,000
216,000

34,057
33,457
32,819
32,182
31,507

146,696
125,846
100,534
70,309
33,897

48 180 1 807

908,1 80 $ 643,111

The total of annual debt service requirements for the Town's Proprietary Funds are as follows.

$

Due Date
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2049

2050
Totals

Principal
$ 62.704

57,O18
59,048
61,O78
63,1 09

361,015
441,407
534,000
456,000
216,000

48,180

lnterest
98,114 $
95,788
93,411
90,944
88,393

399,785
317,317
216,O49

95,644
33,897

1 807

Total
160,818
152,806
152,459
152,O22
151,502
760,800
758,724
750,O49
551,644
249,897

$

49 987

$2, 359,559 $ 1,531,149 $ 3,890,708
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Summary of changes in all business type activity long term debt:

Beginninq lncreases Decreases
Balance

Revenue Bonds
Notes Payable
Accrued Leave

TOTAL

$ 2,370,180 $
64,262
45,595 (9,887)

$___G1JZ9)

35,708

$ 2,395,267

Due ln One
Year

$ 52,000
10,704
17,956

$ 80,660

Ending
Balance

$ (50,000) $ 2,320,180
(24,883) 39,379

$ 2,480,037 $

The current portion of Accrued Leave is recorded in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

TE.7 - NET POSITION RESTRI

The Net Position of the Town is restricted for various reasons. Generally these restrictions are
a result of third party restrictions related to the use of revenues provided to the Town. As of
September 30, 2019 the following Net Position were restricted.

General governmental activities:

Special Revenue Funds:

Street Fund - All revenues received in this fund are restricted for street and road construction
and maintenance. At September 30, 2019, this fund reported a deficit balance which is reported
as Unrestricted.

Business Type Activities:

Water & Sewer Fund -

Bond retirement - This amount is equal to the assets in the revenue bond debt service sinking
accounts less accrued interest and funded bond principal.

Repair and Replacement - This amount is equal to the assets in the reve_nue bond repair and
reþlacement aicounts which are restricted for maintenance or expansion of the water and sewer
system or debt service should the funds not be available in the sinking fund.

NOTES-P ENSION PLAN

General lnformation about the Pension PIan

Plan Descriotion
The Town of Sneads participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), a single retirement
system administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of
Retirement, and consists of two cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other
nonintegrated programs. The plans provide retirement, disability or death benefits to retirees or
their designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for
benefit provisions. Changes to the law can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature.
A comprehensive annual financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial statements,
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN - continued

required supplementary information, actuarial report and other relevant information, is available

from the Florid Department of Management Services'website (www.dms.myflorida.com).

The Florida Retirement System (FRS) Pension plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
qualified defined benefit pension plan with a Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP)

available for eligible employees. The FRS was established and is administered in accordance

with Chapter 1i1, Florida Statutes. Retirees receive a lifetime pension benefit with joint and

survivor payment options. FRS membership is compulsory for employees filling regularly

established positions in a state agency, county agency, state university, state community

college, or district school board, unless restricted from FRS membership under Section 121'053
an¿ 121.122, Florida Statutes, or allowed to participate in a defined contribution plan in lieu of
FRS membership. Participation by cities, municipalities, special districts, charter schools and

metropolitan planning organizations is optional.

The Retiree Health lnsurance Subsidy (HlS) Program is a cost-sharing, multiple employer

defined benefit pension plan established and administered in accordance with Section 112.363,

Florida Statutes. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of the state-administered
retirement system in paying their health insurance costs. To be eligible to receive a HIS benefit,

a retiree under one of the state administered retirement systems must provide proof of eligible

health insurance coverage, which can include Medicare.

Benefits
for ernployees initially enrolled before July 1 ,2011, normal retirement benefits are available to

regular'class employees who retire with at least 6 years of service and have reached age 62;

thã age after 62 the member becomes vested; or with 30 years of service at any age. Special

risk ciass employees may receive normal retirement benefits with at least 6 years of special risk

service after ieaching age 55; the age after 55 the member becomes vested; after 25 years of

service, consisting of both special risk service and up to four year of wartime military service,

and age 52; after 25 years special risk service regardless of age; or with 30 years any creditable

service regardless of age.

For employees enrolled after July 1 ,2011, regular class employees receive benefits with eight
years of service and age 65 or 33 years of service, regardless of age. Special risk class

êmployees are vested with eight years of special risk service and age 60; 30 years of service,

consisiing of both special risk service and up to four years of wartime military service, and age

57; 30 years of special risk service, regardless of age; or 33 years of any creditable service,

regardless of age.

Service retirement benefits are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service, average

final compensation, and service credit. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a
percentage of the average final compensation. For employees initially enrolled prior to July 1,

2011, the average final compensation is the average of the five highest fiscal years' earnings;

for employees initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is the

average ót tfre eight highest fiscal years' earnings. The total percentage value of the benefit

receivéd is determined by calculating the total value of all service, which is based on the
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NOTE I - PENSION PLAN - continued

retirement plan and/or class to which the employee belonged when the service credit was
earned.

The System provides for several benefit options, disability benefits and survivor benefits.

The cost-of-living adjustment for retirements effective before August 1, 2011 is 3% per year.
The cost-of-living adjustment formula for retirees with an effective retirement date on or after
August 1, 2011, will be the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit divided by the total service
credit earned multiplied by 3 percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1,2011,
will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

Contributions
The Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The contributions
requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by the
Florida Legíslature.

Applicable rates effective July 1 ,2018 were

Class

Employee
Contribution

Rate

Employer
Contribution

Rate

Total
Contribution

Rate

Regular
Special Risk
DROP

3.00%
3.00%

N/A

6.54%
22.78o/o

12.37o/o

9.54o/o

25.78o/o

12.37o/o

The above rates include a 1.660/o health insurance subsidy contribution

Total payroll for the Town's employees covered by the System was $672 ,214for the year ended
September 30, 2019. Town and employee contributions to the plan totaled $93,264 and

$20,166 respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Defened Outflows of Resources and Defened lnflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 2019, the Town reported a liability for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability for the FRS Pension Plan was determined by an
actuarial valuation dated June 30,2019. The HIS actuarial valuation was prepared as of July 1,

2018. Update procedures were used to determine liabilities as of June 30,2019 The Town's
proportions of the net pension liabilities was based on the Town's share of contributions to the
pension plans relative to the contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined.
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FRS

Net pension liability at September 30, 2019 $ 762,987

Town's proportion of total State liability at

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2018

HIS Total

$ 223,912 $ 986,899

0.00221 5495% 0. 0020 01 181o/o

0. 00250250 3o/o 0.002238247 o/o

Pension expense (benefit), year ended

September 30, 2019 $ 99,229 $ (1,988) $ 97,241

At September 30, 2019 the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows

of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

FRS HIS

Deferred Deferred Deferred
lnflows of Outflows of lnflows of

Resources Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actualexperienc, $ 45,255 $ (475) ç 2,720 $ (275)

Changes of assumption

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments

195,969 25,924 (18,301)

(42,212) 144

Changes in proportion and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 13,089 (87,073) 7,492 (52,2441

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date

Total

18 136

9_4244e. $ (129,760) g__q9,84 $_129,8?9)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions included $18,136 for FRS and $2,542for HIS

result¡ng from contributions subsequent to the June 30,2019 measurement date. This amount

will be iecognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30,

2020.

2,542
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Thereafter

FRS

$ 51,748
15,61 1

37,717
28,452
7,338
1,824

HIS

$(13,636)
(10,e14)
(5,974)
4,338

(788)
(5,024)

Deferred lnflows exceed Deferred Outflows in the HIS program resulting in the negative
recognition amounts.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability for each of the defined benefit plans was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30,2019, using the entry age normalactuarial cost method and the following
sig nificant actuarial assumptions.

FRS HIS

lnflation
Payroll Growth
lnvestment rate of return

2.60%
3.25o/o

6.90%

2.60%
3.25o/o

NYA

Mortality assumptions for both plans were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projections
Scale BB tables.

Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plan are reviewed annually by the
Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan has a
valuation performed annually. The HIS Program has a valuation performed biennially that is
updated for GASB report in the year a valuation is not performed. The most recent experience
study for the FRS Pension Plan was completed in 2019 for the period July 1 ,2013, through June
30, 2018. Because the HIS Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no experience study
has been completed for this program. The actuarial assumptions that determined the total
pension liability for the HIS Program were based on certain results for the most recent
experience study for the FRS Pension Plan.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2019

FRS: The inflation rate assumption remained at2.60/o, and the overall payroll growth rate
assumption remained at 3.25%. The long-term expected investment rate of return
decreased from 7 .O0o/o to 6.90%. The active member mortality assumption was updated.

HIS: The municipal rate used to determine the total pension liability decreased from
3.87% to 3.50%.

a

a
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The long-term expected rate of return assumption of 6.90% consists of two building block
components: 1) a real (in excess of inflation) return of 4.30 70, consistent with the currently
articulated real return target in the current Florida State Board of Administration's investment
policy, developed using capital market assumptions calculated by Aon Hewitt lnvestment
Consulting; and 2) a long-term average annual inflation assumption of 2.60% as adopted in

October 2019 by the FRS ActuarialAssumption Conference. ln the opinion of the FRS consulting
actuary, Milliman, both components and the overall 6.90% return assumption were determined
to be reasonable and appropriate per the Actuarial Standards of Practice. The 6.9% reported
investment return assumption differs from the 7.2o/o investment return assumption chosen by the
2019 FRS Actuarial Assumption Conference for funding purposes, as allowable under
governmental accounting and reporting standards.

The table below summarizes the key assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the
plan was invested at that time based on the long-term target allocation. Each asset class
assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes an adjustment
for the inflation assumptions. These assumptions are not based on historical return, but instead

are based on a forward-looking capital market model.

Asset
Class

Cash
Fixed income
Global equity
Realestate (property)
Private Equity
Strategic investments

Target
Allocation

1.0o/o

18.0o/o

54.0o/o

11.0o/o

10.Oo/o

6.Oo/o

Annual
Arithmetic

Return
3.3o/o

4.10/o

8.Oo/o

6.7o/o

11.2o/o

5.9o/o

Compound
Annual

(Geometric)
Return

3.3o/o

4.1o/o

6.8%
6.1o/o

8.4o/o

5.7o/o

Standard
Deviation

1.2o/o

3.5o/o

16.5o/o

11.7o/o

25.8o/o

6.7o/o

Assumption lnflation - Mean 2.60/o 1.7o/o

Money-Weishted Rate of Return
For the year ended June 30,2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on FRS pension
plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense was 5.98%.

Discou nt Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for FRS was 6.90%. FRS' fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension

liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Because the HIS Program uses a pay-as-you-go funding structure, a municipal bond rate of
3.50% was used to determine the total pension liability for the program. The Bond Buyer General
Obligation Bond 20-Bond Municipal Bond lndex was used as the applicable municipal bond
index.
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Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the

discount rate-. The sensitivity analysis shows the impact to the Town proportionate share of the

net pension liability if the discount rate was 1% higher or 1o/o lower than the current discount

rate:

FRS HIS

Current Current

1% DecreaseDiscountRate 17o lncrease 1oó Decrease DiscountRate 17o lncrease

5.90% 6.90% 7.90o/o 2'50% 3.50% 4'50%

City's proportionate
share of net
pension liability $1 !_gp4g $zo29g0 $æg-603 $255-002 wß12 gL9Z-514

Pension Plan Fidu ciarv Net Position
Detailed information about the FRS Plan's fiduciary net position is ava ilable in a separately-

issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report. The report may be obtained through the Florida Department of Management

Services website htto://www.dms mvflorida.com

NOTE 9 - MITMENTS AND CON NGENCIES

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Town provides certain compensated absences for its .employees. _Vacation pay and
compeñsatciry time are completely vested to the employees when'eaÎned. Therefore, a liability
ñás bëeñ ìêóoiOeO to refle'ct esiimated future payménts on earned leave. The liability for
accrued leave has been recorded as long term debt in the various funds.

NOTE 10 - MAJO R UTILITY CUSTOMER

The Town provides sewer services to Apalachee Correctional lnstitution (ACl) which represents
a majór ðüstomer-forthe system $C!'paid fees_durþg the year ended SeO!e1!_e¡ 3_0,.2019
amoúntino to aoproximatelv 61% of totdl Sewer Fee Revenués. These fees are anticipated to
continue fô proüide a significant portion of the Town's total sewer revenues.
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NOTE 11 - FRANCHISE FEE INCOME

The Town provides exclusive franchise for providing certain utility services within the Town's
jurisdictional limits. These fees are based on a percentage of revenues charged by the
franchisee. Currently Franchise Fees were received for the following:

Fee Rate Revenue

$__93J-15Electricity Sales 4%

NOTE 12 - LEASE INCOME

As of October 1,2016, the Town renewed a lease for space in the old Town Hall building to the
Jackson County Tax Collector's office. The lease calls for monthly payments of $1,045 through
September 2021. Annual lease payments total $12,540 or a total of $62,700 for the life of the
lease. There are no provisions for contingent lease payments or sub-leases. During the year
ended September 30, 2019, rent from this lease was recorded at $1 1 ,495.

The leased portion of the building represents approximately 50% of the office space in the old
Town Hall building. This building originally cost the Town $70,262 including land and warehouse
area. No cost allocation has been made to the leased portion. Renovations to bring the offices
to the requirements of the lease totaled $5,846. Accumulated depreciation related to these
assets totals $46,018. As a result of Hurricane Michael, significant repairs were required to this
property. These repairs were charged to expenditures.

NOTE 13 - GRANTS- MAJOR PROJECTS AND SUBS UENT EVENTS

Hurricane Michael Damage -On October 10, 2018 the Town of Sneads along with the Panhandle
and surrounding areas were hit by a catastrophic category 5 Hurricane named Michael. The
Town had major damage at the Recreation Park, Park on Lake Seminole and Waste Water
Treatment Plant. Many citizens had major damage as well. As of September 30, 2019, the
Town received storm related insurance proceeds of $795,722 deposited to the General Fund

and $246,699 deposited to the Water and Sewer Fund. lnsurance proceeds related to capital
assets that were totally, or substantially destroyed were considered as proceeds from the sale
of capital assets. The remainder is classified as other revenue: lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane
Michael. Much of the insurance proceeds had not been reinvested as of yearend.

Log Cabin Renovation Project-The Town was awarded a grant from the State of Florida, Division
of Historical Resources in the amount of $49,588 for restoration of the Town's Log Cabin in

Sneads. An extension was awarded until July 31, 2019, however the grant was closed as the
Town was unable to obtain the appropriate historical contractors required by the Division of
Historical resources for such projects.

Police Department Vehicles-ln August, 2018 the Town was awarded a JAG Grant from the
Florida Department of Law Enforcement in the amount of $80,000. Two utility vehicles were
ordered in September,2OlS and delivered in January,2019. Bridge loan was obtained by the
Town to purchase vehicles until Town could be reimbursed from JAG Grant Funds.
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NOTE 13 - GRANTS . MAJOR PROJECTS AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS -continued

State Revolving Fund Grant - ln July 2019, the Town was awarded a loan/grant from the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection for assistance with water and wastewater repairs
required as a result of Hurricane Michael. The funds are broken down as $70,785 for water
system repairs and $792,835 for the wastewater system. Of the total funds, $174,424 is a loan.
The remainder is a forgiveness loan/grant. As of June 2020, the Town has received $182,903
for these repairs.

Budget Amendments- The Town of Sneads adopts an annual operating budget for all funds. The
budget for the General Fund was amended to add $284,000 primarily for capital expenditures in

the Police and Fire Departments, and debt service in the Police and Street Departments. Ïhe
Sneads Street Fund and Sneads Recreation Fund were also was amended to add $10,000 and

$90,000 respectively for repairs and maintenance and supplies. Although, the Street Fund
budget was amended, last minute accruals resulted in a technical over expenditure of that fund's
budget by $3,1 15. However, cash basis expenditures did not exceed appropriations.

ln March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus (COVID-19) a
pandemic. As a result, local and financial markets experienced significant declines and local
economies were greatly affected. The Federal Government passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act to address the fallout from COVID-19. These funds will pass through
the State of Florida. No funds have been distributed to the Town as of the date of this report
and no adjustments have been made to the accompanying financial statements.

TEMPLOYME

ln accordance with Section 112.0801 of the Florida Statutes, the Town provides postretirement
health insurance to employees who retire from the Town and wish to remain on the Town's
health plan. The retired employees reimburse the Town for the actual premium cost, including
the portion that previously would have been paid by the Town during employment. Expenses
for postretirement health care benefits are recognized as paid and there is not advance funding
on the part of the Town.

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other than Pension Plans, became effective for periods beginning after December 15,

2009 for Phase lll governments, which the Town is considered. This guideline is required for all
governmental employers who provide other postemployment benefits for which the employer
pays all or part of the cost of the benefits, such as the postretirement health care plan discussed
above. GASB Statement No. 45 improves financial reporting and disclosure by matching the
cost of postemployment benefits with the periods when the related services are received by the
employer, by providing information about accrued liabilities for promised benefits related to past
services and the extent those liabilities have been funded and by providing valuable information
about demands on future employer cash flows.
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

NOTE 14 _ OTHER POSTEMP ENT BENEFITS - Continued

The Town did not implement GASB Statement No. 75 or obtain the actuarial report necessary
to determine the amounts to report in the accompanying financial statements. The potential
liability has not been reflected in the accompanying Statement of Net Position and the annual
costs associated with the plan have also not been reflected in the accompanying Statement of
Activities.

NOTE 15 _ LITIGATION

The Town has two lawsuits pending as of year-end. ln the opinion of management, after
consultation with legal counsel, these matters will likely be resolved without a material adverse
effect on the Town's financial statements. However, should a judgement be rendered against
the Town, legal council believes insurance coverage is adequate should the Town receive an
unfavorable outcome.
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REQU IRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMAT¡ON



Town of Sneads, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses & Permits
I ntergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Judgements and Fines
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Health
Culture/Recreation

Debt Service:
Principal
lnterest

Capital Outlay

Total bçenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Sources and Uses of Funds
Proceeds From Sale of CapitalAssets
lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane Michael
Transfers ln
Transfers Out

Net Change in

Fund Balances

Fund Balances- beginning

Original Final

418,595 $
98,468

292,988
66,877
2,550

$

24 673

165,083
483,953

13,700
110,330

6,900
7,600

23,203
2,382

32,000

845,151

2,000

418,595 $
98,468

398,134
66,877
2,550

24,673

Budgeted Amounts ActualAmounts
(GAAP Basis)

438,694
101,185
398,377
64,910
3,252

26,921

904 151 1,009,297 1,033,339

165,083
483,953

13,700
110,330

6,900
7,600

94,459
4,002

172,538

114,836
430,651

6,751
106,319

7,103
2,055

24,459
4,069

160 766

1,059,565 857,009

59,000 (49,268) 176,330

2,000
148,854

695,960
138,013

4,210
(61,000) (131,586) (96,194)

(30,000) 918,319

195,139 185,139 185,139

$ 185,139 $ 155,139 $ 1,103,458Fund Balances - ending

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Budoetarv Comparison Schedule - Street Fund

F-or thê Yeai Ended September 30, 2019

REVENUES
Taxes
M iscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Transportation
Debt Service:

Principal
lnterest
Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Budgeted Amounts ActualAmounts

Original Final (GAAP Basis)

$ 119,607 $ 119,607 $ 119,893
32

119,607 119,607

102,731 112,731 127,837

119,925

21,468
408

21,468
408

9,477
408

124,607 134,607 137 722

(5,000) (15,000) (17, 797)

Net Change in

Fund Balances (5,000) (15,000) (17,797)

Fund Balances- beginning 16,375 16,375 16,375

Fund Balances - ending $ 11,375 $ 1,375 $ ( 422)

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Recreation Fund- For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

REVENUES
Charges For Services
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture/Recreation
CapitalOutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Sources/Uses of Funds
lnsurance Proceeds - Hurricane Michael

Transfers ln

31,500 31 500

Original

$ 31,500 $

Final

31,500

Budgeted Amounts ActualAmounts
(GAAP Basis)

$ 10,948
40

92,815
6,685

182,815
6,685

10 988

65,466
11',\ 429

99,500 189,500 176,895

(68,000) (158,00q) (165, 907)

90,000
61,000 9661,000 194

lrlet Change in

Fund Balances (7,000) (7,000) (6e, 713\

Fund Balances- beginning I 482 13,482 13,482

Fund Balances - ending $ 6,482 $ 6,482 $____lg9¿91)

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Sneads, Florida
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Pension Liability

Florida Retirement System
Last 6 Fiscal Years*

Town's proportionate share of Net Pension Liability $ 762,987 $ 753,498 $ 781 ,478 $ 729,288 $ 350,705 $ 158,187

Town's Covered Employee Payroll g 672,214 $ 709,698 5 767 ,433 $ 808,820 $ 793,565 $ 731,177

FRS PENSION PLAN

Town's proportion of the Net Pension Liability

Town's proportionate share of Net Pension Liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

Town's proportionate share of Net Pension Liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
0.0022154950/o 0.002502503% 0.002641973o/o 0.002888261% O.OO2715198o/o 0.0025926050/o

113.50o/o 106.17o/o 101.83o/o 90.17o/o 44.19o/o 21.630/o

82.61o/o 84.260/o 83.89% 84.88o/o 92.O0o/o 96.09%

33.31o/o 33.38% 33"98% 39.00% 33.25% 31.93%

2.630/o 2.15o/o 1.640/o 0.97o/o 0.99%

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM

Town's proportion of the Net Pension Liability
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

0.002001181% 0.0022382470/o 0.0024387240/o 0.0027068620/o 0.0025870020/o 0.0024966230/0

Town's proportionate share of Net Pension Liability $ 223,912 g 236,902 $ 260,762 $ 315,474 $ 263,835 $ 233,440

Town's Covered Employee Payroll $ 672,214 $ 709,698 $ 767,433 $ 808,820 $ 793,565 $ 731,177

0.50%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30.

Note: lnformation is required to be presented for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Town will present
information for only those years for which the information is availab¡e.
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FRS PENSION PLAN

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Town's Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM

Contractually Required Contribution

Contribr¡tions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Town's Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

Town of Sneads, Florida
Schedule of Pension Contributions

Florida Retirement System
Last 6 FiscalYears*

2019 2018
$ 72,490 $ 71,319

(72,490) (71,319)

$_________ L_
672,214 709,698

10.78o/o 10.05%

2019 2018
$ 12J38

$

(68,777) (70,435) (66,198)

767,433 808,820 793,565

8.96Vo 8.71o/o 8.34%

2017 2016
$ 68,777 $ 70,435

$ $$

2015
$ 66,198

2014
$ 56,789

(56,789)

$________

731,177

7.77%

2017

$ 12,906 $
2016 2015 2014

$ 11,122 13,974 $ 9,889 $ 8,553

(11,122\ (12,138) (12,906) 13,874 (9,889) (8,553)

672,214 709,698 767,433 808,820 793,565 731,177

1.650/o 1.71o/o 1.680/o 1.72o/o 1.25o/o 1.17%

$$$$$

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Note: lnformation is required to be presented for 10 years. However, until a full 1O-year trend is compiled, the Town will present
information for only those years for which the information is available.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES,

LOCAL GOVERNMENT NVESTMENT POLICIES



GruvrsLEY ôg AssocIArES
Professional Association

C ertifte d P ub I ic Accountants
MEMBER

FLORIDA INSTITUTE AND
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTSOWEN W. GRTMSLEY, C.P.A.

Marianna, Florida
October 9,2020

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES

Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads
Sneads, Florida

We have examined Town of Sneads, Florida's compliance with the requirements of
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government lnvestment Policies, during the year
ended September 30,2019. Management is responsible for Town of Sneads, Florida's
compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Town
of Sneads, Florida's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Town of Sneads, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the specified
requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to
obtain evidence about whether the Town of Sneads, Florida complied with the specified
requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due
to fraud or error. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on Town of Sneads, Florida's
compliance with specified requirements.

ln our opinion, Town of Sneads, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the
aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2019.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the State
of Florida Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Ç t"í,vwtl*a €¡ Attocí,øfrw

Grimsley and Associates, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Post Office Box220. Lafayette Street ' Marianna, Florida 32447-0220 ' 850-526-3910 ' FAX 850-482-6019
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I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS
REQUIRED BY

GO YERN M E NT AU D IT I N G S TANDARDS



]NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
G OV E RN M ENT AU D IT I N G S TANDARDS



Grun¿sLEY ñgAssocrArEs
Professional Association

C ertfted Pub I ic Accountants

OWEN W. GRrrr¡sr-ev, C.P.A.

MEMBER
FLORIDA INSTITUTE AND

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTÌFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING SIANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads
Sneads, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audit contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sneads, Florida, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town of Sneads, Florida's basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated October 9,2020.

lnternal Gontrol over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of
Sneads, Florida's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Sneads, Florida's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Sneads, Florida's internal control.

A deficiency in intemal controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Post Office Box220 'Lafayette Street'Marianna, Florida 32447-O22O '850-526-3910. FAX 850-482-6019
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Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads, Florida
Page 2

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

Gompliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Sneads, Florida's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standard and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as items 2019-001 and2019-002.

Town's Response to Findings

The Town's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Management's Response. The Town's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in

considering the entity's internalcontroland compliance. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Çrtmù*a er As+ooíatøy

Marianna, Florida
October 9,2020

Grimsley and Associates, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS



Town of Sneads, Florida
Schedule of Findings
September 30, 2019

2019-001

Criteria - Florida Statutes require the Town to adopt an annual budget controlling
appropriations and expenditures. Expenditures may not exceed budgeted
appropriations.

Condition - ln the current year, the Town exceeded its budget appropriations in the Street
Fund. Street Fund expenditures exceeded amended budgeted appropriations by $3,1 15.

Effect - The Town is not in compliance with Florida Statute 166.241 (2).

Cause - The Town's management miscalculated year end accruals after budget
amendments.

Recommendation - Town management and staff charged with tracking expenditures and
appropriations should be mindful of possible large year-end expenditures that could
exceed budgeted appropriations for the fiscal year.

2019-002

Criteria - The Town is required to implement GASB Statement 75.

Condition - The Town did not implement GASB Statement 75 or obtain the actuarial
report necessary to determine the amounts to report in the financial statements.

Effect - The Town's liabilities related to other post-employment benefits (other than
pensions) is understated.

Cause - The Town has not hired an actuarial specialist to determine the Town's liability
related to other post-employment benefits.

Recommendation - We recommend that an actuarial study and all other items necessary
to implement GASB Statement 75 be performed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO MANAGEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF FLORIDA



GrurusLEY ôgAssocrArEs
Professional Association

Certfte d P ub lic Accountants

OWEN W. GRIMSLEY, C.P.A.

MEMBER
FLORIDA INSTITUTE AND
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO TOWN MANAGEMENT

Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads
Sneads, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Sneads, Florida (the "Town") as of
and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 9,2020.

Auditor's Responsib¡l¡ty

We conducted our audit in accordance with audíting standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control over Financial
Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards; Schedule of Findings; and
lndependent Accountant's Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA
Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports
and schedule, which are dated October 9,2020, should be considered in conjunction with
this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1X¡)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or
not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in
the preceding annual financial audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address
findings and recommendations made in the preceding annualfinancial audit report.

Post Office Box220 'Lafayelte Street ' Marianna, Florida 32447-0220 ' 850-526-3910 'FAX 850-482-6019
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Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads
Sneads, Florida

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1X¡)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title
and Iegal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting
entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. This information is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Financial Gondition and Management

Sections 10.554(1)(i)s.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or
not the Town of Sneads, Florida has met one or more of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1) Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific conditions met. ln connection with
our audit, we determined that the Town of Sneads, Florida did not meet any of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1Xi)s.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we
applied financial condition assessment procedures for the Town of Sneads, Florida. lt is
management's responsibility to monitor the Town of Sneads, Florida's financial condition,
and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1Xi)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. ln connection with our audit, we did
not have any such recommendations.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1Xi)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate
noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have
occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that
is less than material but warrant the attention of those charged with governance. ln
connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.
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Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Sneads
Sneads, Florida

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative
Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of
Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the
Mayor and Town Council, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ç t'í'vwù*'y €¡ At+oc,íatøY

Marianna, Florida
October 9,2020

Grimsley and Associates, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
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RESPONSE TO AUDIT FINDINGS



October 9,

î.swn of ,&r*eads
PO Drawer 159
Sneads, Florida 32460
PH (850) 593-6636 Fax (850)593-s029
Website: sneadsfl.com
Face,book: Town of Sneads - City Hall

Office of the Auditor General
P.O. Box 1.735

Tallahassee, Ffor.ida 32302-7735

Dear Sir:

The Town of Sneads, Florida respectively submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended
September 30, 2019.

Auditors Grimsley & Assoicates, Certified Public Accountants, PA.

The findings from the September 30, 2019 schedule of questioned costs are discussed as follows: The
findings äre numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in this schedule.

FI N DINGS-FINANCIAT STATEMENT AU DIT

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

2019-001 Controlling Appropriations and Expenditures of Annual Budget

Recommendation: Town management and staff charged with tracking expenditures and

appropriations should be mindful of possíble large year-end expenditures that could
exceed budgeted appropriations for the fiscal year.

Response/Aetíon Taken: Management staff will insure that fínancial reports are trued
up prior to the end of the FY and recommend budget adjustments to Town Council
as needed to insure that exceeding the budget does not occur in the future.

2019-02 lmplementation of GASB Statement 75

Recommendation: We recommend that an actuar¡al study and all othþr items necessary
to implement GASB Statement 75 be performed.

Response/Action Taken: Management bel¡eves that GASB 75 is not feasible for the
Town to calculate due to the small size and the number of employees. The Town will
coordinate with the Florida League of Cities, lnc. about any progrâms thât may be

available to the Towrr with facilitating this in the future and will reach out for cost
estimates to review the feasibility of implementing this suggested study.
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Page 2

lf the Office of the Auditor General has any questions regarding this plan, please call Sherri

Griffin, Town Clerk at (850) 593-6636.

Sincerely,
**f1 \ 1ì

#Vì'r{-' tÅ*Æ-*
Mike Weeks

Council President
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